## **Instructor Guide to FAA Endorsements**



## **Table of Contents**

Student Pilots	4
U.S. Citizenship Verification	5
Solo Requirements	6
Basic First Solo Endorsements	8
Additional Student Pilot Solo Endorsements	10
Private Pilot Endorsements	14
Instrument Rating Endorsements	15
Commercial Pilot Endorsements	16
Proficiency Endorsements-Flight Review and IPC	17
Complex or High-Performance Endorsement	18
Additional Endorsements – high-performance, complex, high altitude, tailwheel, additional category or class (multiengine)	19
Additional Student Pilot Endorsements For Students Seeking	
Sport Or Recreational Pilot Certificates	21
Sport Pilot Endorsements	22
Recreational Pilot Endorsements	26
Test Failures	29

### **CFI Endorsement Guide**

Welcome to the CFI Endorsement Guide from NAFI and Sporty's. While not intended to cover every possible endorsement requirement, the guide does succinctly outline the most common endorsements you are likely to encounter, and in a likely order when beginning with a student pilot. It's worth noting that many of these endorsement templates are populated within print and electronic logbooks that are popular among pilots.

As you may not utilize certain endorsements frequently, it's important to reference this CFI guide, along with applicable regulations and the current advisory circular, to ensure you've met your regulatory requirements.

If you have questions or comments, please email CFI@Sportys.com.



### **Student Pilots**

#### **Processing IACRA Student Pilot Applications**

CFIs should utilize IACRA (IACRA.FAA.gov) for accepting a student pilot application. In order for a CFI to accept a student pilot application, the CFI must be registered in IACRA in the appropriate role. Before processing an application for a Student Pilot Certificate, ensure the applicant meets the age (16 for airplanes) and English proficiency requirements and verify the applicant's identity via a government-issued photo ID.

A student who meets the eligibility requirements may register as a student pilot applicant through IACRA which stores FAA Form 8710-1 electronically until the CFI accesses the form. CFIs access the student's 8710-1 by logging in and searching for the person's unique FAA tracking number (FTN) and verify the application has been completed properly.

The CFI will input the applicant's photo identification data into IACRA when prompted. Once the CFI has completed the application through IACRA, it will be transmitted electronically to FAA for processing. The student pilot applicant can expect the temporary pilot certificate to be available for download and print within IACRA in just a few days and the permanent certificate to arrive in approximately 5 weeks. Plastic student pilot certificates do not expire.

## **U.S. Citizenship Verification**

Instructors must verify U.S. citizenship prior to initiating pilot training for Private, Instrument or Multiengine pilot training (49 CFR) § 1552.3(h). The flight instructor and/or flight school must keep a copy of the documents used to provide proof of citizenship for five (5) years OR make the endorsement below in the student's logbook and the instructor's logbook or other record.

Non-US citizens (including resident aliens) must participate in the Alien Flight Student Program and undergo a security threat assessment outlined at **FlightSchoolCandidates.gov**.

I certify that	[Firs	st name, MI, Last name] has presented me
a		[type of document presented,
	e or U.S. passport, and the relevant cor is a U.S.citizen or national in accordanc	ntrol or sequential number on the document, if any] ce with 49 CFR § 1552.3(h).
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	

### **Solo Requirements**

#### Knowledge Test

The student pilot must have completed a pre-solo knowledge test. Refer to § 61.87(b). A recommended pre-solo test is provided within Sporty's Learn to Fly Course. At the conclusion of the test, the CFI must review all incorrect answers with the student before authorizing that student to conduct a solo flight. The test must address the student pilot's knowledge of:

(i) Applicable sections of Parts 61 and 91

- (ii) Airspace rules and procedures for the airport where the solo flight will be performed; and
- (iii) Flight characteristics and operational limitations for the make and model of aircraft to be flown.

## **Solo Requirements**

The student pilot must have received and logged flight training for the maneuvers and procedures that are appropriate to the make and model of aircraft to be flown. Refer to § 61.87. Training requirements for single engine airplanes are:

- (1) Proper flight preparation procedures, including preflight planning and preparation, powerplant operation, and aircraft systems;
- (2) Taxiing or surface operations, including runups;
- (3) Takeoffs and landings, including normal and crosswind;
- (4) Straight and level flight, and turns in both directions;
- (5) Climbs and climbing turns;
- (6) Airport traffic patterns, including entry and departure procedures;
- (7) Collision avoidance, windshear avoidance, and wake turbulence avoidance;
- (8) Descents, with and without turns, using high and low drag configurations;

- (9) Flight at various airspeeds from cruise to slow flight;
- (10) Stall entries from various flight attitudes and power combinations with recovery initiated at the first indication of a stall, and recovery from a full stall;
- (11) Emergency procedures and equipment malfunctions;
- (12) Ground reference maneuvers;
- (13) Approaches to a landing area with simulated engine malfunctions;
- (14) Slips to a landing; and
- (15) Go-arounds.

### **Basic First Solo Endorsements**

#### Aeronautical Knowledge § 61.87(b) ONE-TIME ENDORSEMENT

I certify that		[First name, MI, Last name] has satisfactorily completed the
pre-solo knowledge test of § 61.87(b) fo	or the	[make and model] aircraft.
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	

#### Pre-solo flight training: § 61.87(c)(1) and (2) ONE-TIME ENDORSEMENT

I certify that		[First name, MI, Last name] has received and logged pre-	solo
flight training for the maneuver	s and procedures that a	re appropriate to the[	[make
and model] aircraft. I have dete	rmined [he or she] has d	emonstrated satisfactory proficiency and safety on the maneuve	ers
and procedures required by § 6.	1.87 in this or similar ma	ke and model of aircraft to be flown.	
DATE	CFI		
CFI NO	EXP		

### **Basic First Solo Endorsements**

#### Solo flight (initial 90 calendar-day period): § 61.87(n). INITIAL 90 DAY ENDORSEMENT

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has received the required training
to qualify for solo flying. I have determined [	he or she] meets the applicable requirements of § 61.87(n) and is proficient to
make solo flights in	[make and model] aircraft.
DATE	_CFI
CFI NO	_ EXP

#### Solo flight (each additional 90 calendar-day period): § 61.87(p). EVERY 90 DAYS

I certify that		[First name, MI, Last name]has received the required training
to qualify for solo flying. I have	ve determined [he or she] mee	ts the applicable requirements of § 61.87(p) and is proficient to
make solo flights in		[make and model] aircraft.
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	

## Solo takeoffs and landings at another airport within 25 nautical miles (NM): § 61.93(b)(1).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name]has received the required
training of § 61.93(b)(1). I ha	ive determined that [he or she] is proficient to practice solo takeoffs and landings
at	[airport name]. The takeoffs and landings are subject to the following conditions:
	[List any applicable conditions or limitations.]
DATE	CFI
CFI NO	EXP

#### Solo cross-country flight general: § 61.93(c)(1) and (2). ONE-TIME ENDORSEMENT

I certify that		[First name, MI, Last name] has received the required solo
cross-country training. I find [h	e or she] has met the applica	ble requirements of § 61.93, and is proficient to make solo cross-
country flights in a		[make and model] aircraft,
[aircraft category].		
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	
		Copyright 2022 Sporty's Academy, Inc

#### Solo cross-country flight specific: § 61.93(c)(3). – SPECIFIC TO EACH CROSS-COUNTRY FLIGHT.

I have reviewed the cross-country planning of		[First name, MI, Last name].
I find the planning and prep	paration to be correct to make the solo flight from	[origination
airport] to	[origination airport] via	[route of flight]
with landings at	[names of the airports] in a	[make and
model] aircraft on	[date] subject to the following conditions:	
[List any applicable condition	ons or limitations.]	
DATE	CFI	_
CFI NO.	EXP	

## Repeated solo cross-country flights not more than 50 NM from the point of departure: §61.93(b)(2).

I certify that directions between and at both proficient of § 61.93(b)(2) to conduct repea		ast name] has received the required training in both _[airport names]. I have determined that [he or she] is ghts over that route, subject to the following conditions:
[List	any applicable conditions	s or limitations.]
DATE	_CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	
<b>11</b> NAFI: Guide to FAA Endorsements REV1.3		Copyright 2022 Sporty's Academy, Inc

#### Solo flight in Class B airspace: § 61.95(a).

I certify that		[First name, MI, Last name] has received the required training
of § 61.95(a). I have dete	rmined [he or she] is proficient	t to conduct solo flights in
[name of Class B] airspa	ce subject to the following limi	tations
[List any applicable cond	ditions or limitations.]	
DATE	CFI	
	FYD	

## Solo flight to, from, or at an airport located in Class B airspace: § 61.95(b) and 14 CFR part 91, § 91.131(b)(1).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has received the required
training of § 61.95(b)(1). I have determ	ined that [he or she] is proficient to conduct solo flight operations at
	name of airport] subject to the following limitations
[List any applicable conditions or limit	ations.]
DATE	CFI
CFI NO	EXP

## Pre-solo flight training at night: § 61.87(o). Flight training must be received within the 90 calendar-day period preceding the date of the flight.

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name]has received flight training
at night on night flying procedures	that include takeoffs, approaches, landings, and go-arounds at night at the
	[airport name] airport where the solo flight will be conducted; navigation training at
night in the vicinity of the	[airport name] airport where the solo flight will be conducted.
This endorsement expires 90 calen	dar-days from the date the flight training at night was received.
DATE	CFI
CFI NO.	EXP.

### **Private Pilot Endorsements**

#### Aeronautical knowledge test: §§ 61.35(a)(1), 61.103(d), and 61.105.

I certify that	tify that [First name, MI, Last name] has receiv	
accordance with § 61.105. I have determined [he or she] is prepared for the		[name of] knowledge test.
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	

#### Flight proficiency/practical test: §§ 61.103(f), 61.107(b), and 61.109.

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has received	d the required training in accordance
with §§ 61.107 and 61.109. I have determined [he or she] is prepared for the		[name of] practical test.
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	

#### Prerequisites for practical tests: § 61.39(a).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name]	] has received and logged the required flight
	preparation for the practical test within 2 calenc	
has satisfactory knowledge of	f the subject areas in which [he or she] was show	wn to be deficient by the FAA Airman Knowledge
Test Report. I have determine	ed [he or she] is prepared for the	[name of] practical test.
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	
<b>14</b> NAFI: Guide to FAA Endorse	ements REV1.3	Copyright 2022 Sporty's Academy, Inc

## **Instrument Rating Endorsements**

#### Aeronautical knowledge test: §§ 61.35(a)(1) and 61.65(a) and (b).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has received the required training of § 61.65(b).
I have determined that [he or she] is prepared	d for the Instrument–[airplane, helicopter, or powered-lift] knowledge test.
DATE	

DATE	_CFI
CFI NO	EXP

#### Flight proficiency/practical test: § 61.65(a)(6).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has received the required training of § 61.65(c)
and (d). I have determined [he or she] is prepared	for the Instrument–[airplane, helicopter, or powered-lift] practical test.

DATE	_CFI
CFI NO	_ EXP

#### Prerequisites for practical tests: § 61.39(a).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] h	nas received and logged the required flight
time/training of § 61.39(a) in prep	aration for the practical test within 2 calendar	r-months preceding the date of the test and
has satisfactory knowledge of the	subject areas in which [he or she] was shown	to be deficient by the FAA Airman Knowledge
Test Report. I have determined [h	e or she] is prepared for the	[name of] practical test.
DATE	CFI	

CFI NO	EXP

Copyright 2022 Sporty's Academy, Inc

### **Commercial Pilot Endorsements**

#### Aeronautical knowledge test: §§ 61.35(a)(1), 61.123(c), and 61.125.

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has recei	ved the required training of § 61.125. I
have determined that [he or she] is prepared	l for the	[name of] knowledge test.
DATE	CFI	-
CFI NO	EXP	-

#### Flight proficiency/practical test: §§ 61.123(e), 61.127, and 61.129.

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has receive	ed the required training of §§ 61.127
and 61.129. I have determined that [he or she] is prepared for the		[name of] practical test.
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	

#### Prerequisites for practical tests: § 61.39(a).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] h	nas received and logged the required flight
time/training of § 61.39(a)	) in preparation for the practical test within 2 calendar	-months preceding the date of the test and
has satisfactory knowledg	ge of the subject areas in which [he or she] was shown	to be deficient by the FAA Airman Knowledge
Test Report. I have determ	nined [he or she] is prepared for the	[name of] practical test.
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	
		Copyright 2022 Sporty's Academy, Inc

## **Proficiency Endorsements-Flight Review and IPC**

#### Completion of a flight review: § 61.56(a) and (c).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name],	[grade of pilot certificate],
[certificate number], has satisfactorily completed a flight review of § 61.56(a) on[date].		
DATE	_CFI	
CFI NO	_EXP	

#### Completion of an instrument proficiency check: § 61.57(d).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name],	_[grade of pilot certificate],
[certificate number], has satisfactorily comp	leted the instrument proficiency chec	k of § 61.57(d) in a
[make and model] aircraft on	[date].	
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	

## **Complex or High-Performance Endorsement**

#### To act as pilot in command in a complex airplane: § 61.31(e).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name],	[grade of pilot certificate],
[certificate number], has rece	eived the required training of § 61.31(e) in a	[make and model] complex
airplane. I have determined that [he or she] is proficient in the operation and systems of a complex airplane.		
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP.	

#### To act as pilot in command in a high-performance airplane: § 61.31(f).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name],	_[grade of pilot certificate],
[certificate number], has received the requ	uired training of § 61.31(f) in a	[make and model]
high performance airplane. I have determ	ined that [he or she] is proficient in the	operation and systems of a high-performance
airplane.		
DATE		

DATE	_CFI
CFI NO	EXP

## Additional Endorsements – high altitude, tailwheel, additional category or class (multiengine)

To act as pilot in command in a pressurized aircraft capable of high-altitude operations: § 61.31(g)(an aircraft that has a service ceiling or maximum operating altitude, whichever is lower, above 25,000 feet MSL).

I certify that	_[First name, MI, Last name],	_[grade of pilot certificate],
[certificate number], has received the requir	ed training of § 61.31(g) in a	[make and model] pressurized
aircraft. I have determined that [he or she] is	s proficient in the operation and syste	ms of a pressurized aircraft.
DATE	_CFI	
CFI NO.	EXP.	

## Additional Endorsements – high altitude, tailwheel, additional category or class (multiengine)

To act as pilot in command in a tailwheel airplane: § 61.31(i)(this endorsement may be given in asport pilot aircraft by a sport pilot instructor, or in an airplane by a flight instructor with a rating other than a sport pilot rating.

I certify that	_[First name, MI, Last name],	_[grade of pilot certificate],
[certificate number], has received the requ	red training of § 61.31(i) in a	[make and model] tailwheel
airplane. I have determined that [he or she] is proficient in the operation of a tailwheel airplane.		

DATE	_CFI
CFI NO	_ EXP

#### Additional aircraft category or class rating (other than ATP): § 61.63(b) or (c).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name],	[grade of pilot certificate],
[certificate number], has rece	ived the required training for an additional	[category/class rating]. I
have determined that [he or s	he] is prepared for the	[name of] practical test for the addition of a
	[name of] [specific aircraft category/class/ty	pe] rating.
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	
		Convright 2022 Sporty's Academy, Inc.

## Additional Student Pilot Endorsements For Students Seeking Sport or Recreational Pilot Certificates

#### Solo flight in Class B, C, and D airspace: § 61.94(a).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last na	nme] has received the required training of § 61.94(a). I
have determined [he or she] is pro-	oficient to conduct solo flights in_	[name of Class B, C, or D]
airspace and authorized to opera	te to, from through and at	[name of airport] subject to the
following limitations:		[List any applicable conditions or limitations.]
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	

## Solo flight to, from, or at an airport located in Class B, C, or D airspace or at an airport having an operational control tower: §§ 61.94(a) and 91.131(b)(1).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has received the required training of § 61.94(a)(1).
I have determined that [he or she] is profi	cient to conduct solo flight operations at
[name of airport located in Class B, C, or	D airspace or an airport having an operational control tower] subject to the following
limitations:	[List any applicable conditions or limitations.]
DATE	CFI
CFI NO	EXP

#### Aeronautical knowledge test: §§ 61.35(a)(1) and 61.309.

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has received	the required aeronautical knowledge
training of § 61.309. I have determined that [he or she] is prepared for the[name of] knowled		[name of] knowledge test.
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO.	EXP.	

## Taking flight proficiency check for different category or class of aircraft: §§ 61.309 and 61.311.

I certify that	_[First name, MI, Last name] as received the required training required in
accordance with §§ 61.309 and 61.311 and have d	etermined that [he or she] is prepared for the
[name of] proficiency check.	

DATE	_CFI
CFI NO.	EXP.

## Passing flight proficiency check for different category or class of aircraft: §§ 61.309 and 61.311.

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has met the requirements of §§ 61.309 and
61.311 and I have determined [him or her] pro	oficient to act as pilot in command of
[category and class] of light-sport aircraft.	
DATE	CFI
CFI NO.	EXP.

#### Taking sport pilot practical test: §§ 61.309, 61.311, and 61.313.

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has received the training required
in accordance with §§ 61.309 and 61.312	and met the aeronautical experience requirements of § 61.313. I have determined
that [he or she] is prepared for the	[type of] practical test.
DATE	CFI
CFI NO	EXP

#### Prerequisites for practical tests: § 61.39(a).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has received and log	ged the
required flight time/training of § 61.39(a) in preparation for th	ne practical test within 2 calendar-months precedir	ng the date
of the test and has satisfactory knowledge of the subject area	as in which [he or she] was shown to be deficient by	y the FAA
Airman Knowledge Test Report. I have determined [he or she	] is prepared for the	[name of]
practical test.		

DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	

## Passing a sport pilot practical test: §§ 61.309, 61.311, and 61.313. This endorsement is required by § 61.317 and is issued by a Sport Pilot Examiner (SPE).

[category and class of] light-sport aircraft.	
61.309, 61.311, and 61.313, and I have determined [him or her]	] proficient to act as pilot in command of
I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has met the requirements of §§

DATE	_CFI
CFI NO.	EXP

## Class B, C, or D airspace, at an airport located in Class B, C, or D airspace, or to, from, through, or at an airport having an operational control tower: § 61.325.

I certify that	_[First name, MI, Last name] has received the required training
of § 61.325. I have determined [he or she] is proficient to condu	act operations in Class B, C, or D airspace, at an airport located
in Class B, C, or D airspace, or to, from, through, or at an airpor	t having an operational control tower.

DATE	_CFI
CFI NO	_ EXP

Light-sport aircraft that has a maximum speed in level flight with maximum continuous power (VH) less than or equal to 87 Knots Calibrated Airspeed (KCAS): § 61.327.

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has received the required training
required in accordance with § 61.327(a) in a	[make and model] aircraft. I have determined
[him or her] proficient to act as pilot in comma	and of a light-sport aircraft that has a VH less than or equal to 87 KCAS.
DATEC	FI

#### Light-sport aircraft that has a VH greater than 87 KCAS: § 61.327.

CFI NO.\_\_\_\_\_ EXP. \_\_\_\_\_

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has received the required
training required in accordance with § 61.32	7(b) in a[make and model] aircraft. I have
determined [him or her] proficient to act as	pilot in command of a light-sport aircraft that has a VH greater than 87 KCAS.
DATE	CFI
CFI NO	EXP

## **Recreational Pilot Endorsements**

#### Aeronautical knowledge test: §§ 61.35(a)(1), 61.96(b)(3), and 61.97(b).

I certify that	[First name,	MI, Last name] has received the required training of
§ 61.97(b). I have determined t	hat [he or she] is prepared for the	[name of] knowledge test.
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	

#### Flight proficiency/practical test: §§ 61.96(b)(5), 61.98(a) and (b), and 61.99.

I certify that	_[First name, MI, Last name] has received the requi	red training
of §§ 61.98(b) and 61.99. I have determined that [he or she] is p	repared for the	[name of]
practical test.		

DATE	_CFI
CFI NO	_ EXP

#### Prerequisites for practical tests: § 61.39(a).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has received and logge	ed the
required flight time/training of § 61.39(a) in preparation for the	practical test within 2 calendar-months preceding	; the date
of the test and has satisfactory knowledge of the subject areas	in which [he or she] was shown to be deficient by t	the FAA
Airman Knowledge Test Report. I have determined [he or she] is	s prepared for the	[name of]
practical test.		

DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	
		Copyright 2022 Sporty's Academy, Inc

## **Recreational Pilot Endorsements**

## Recreational pilot to operate within 50 NM of the airport where training was received: § 61.101(b).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last nar	me] has received the required training
of § 61.101(b). I have determined that [he	e or she] is competent to operate at the	[name of airport].
DATE	CFI	_
CFI NO	EXP	_

## Recreational pilot to act as pilot in command on a flight that exceeds 50 NM of the departure airport: § 61.101(c).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has received the required cross-
country training of § 61.101(c). I have determ	ined that [he or she] is proficient in cross-country flying of part 61 subpart E.
DATE	_CFI

CFI NO.\_\_\_\_\_ EXP. \_\_\_\_\_

## Recreational pilot with less than 400 flight hours and no logged pilot in command time within the preceding 180 calendar-days: § 61.101(g).

I certify that		[First name, MI, Last name] has received the required 180-
day recurrent training of § 61.	101(g) in a	[make and model] aircraft. I have determined [him or her]
proficient to act as pilot in co	mmand of that aircraft.	
DATE	CFI	
CFI NO	EXP	
		Copyright 2022 Sporty's Academy, Inc

## **Recreational Pilot Endorsements**

# Recreational pilot to conduct solo flights for the purpose of obtaining an additional certificate or rating while under the supervision of an authorized flight instructor: § 61.101(j).

D.475		
not hold a category/class rating, etc.).]		
endorsement (e.g., flight which requires	communicatio	on with air traffic control, flight in an aircraft for which the pilot does
solo flight on [date] under the following	conditions:	[List all conditions which require
of § 61.87 in a	[make and	model] aircraft. I have determined [he or she] is prepared to conduct a
I certify that		[First name, MI, Last name] has received the required training

DATE	_CFI
CFI NO	_ EXP

## Class B, C, or D airspace, at an airport located in Class B, C, or D airspace, or to, from, through, or at an airport having an operational control tower: § 61.101(d).

I certify that	[First name, MI, Last name] has received the required training
of § 61.101(d). I have determined [he or she] is proficient to co	nduct operations in Class B, C, or D airspace, at an airport
located in Class B, C, or D airspace, or to, from, through, or at a	an airport having an operational control tower.

DATE	_CFI
CFI NO	_EXP

### **Test Failures**

Retesting after failure of a knowledge or practical test: § 61.49. In the case of a failed knowledge test, the instructor may complete the endorsement in the space provided at the bottom of the applicant's Airman Knowledge Test Report (AKTR). The instructor must sign the block provided for the instructor's recommendation on the reverse side of FAA Form 8710-1, Airman Certificate and/or Rating Application, for each retake of a practical test.

I certify that\_\_\_\_\_ [First name, MI, Last name] has received the additional [flight and/or ground, as appropriate] training as required by § 61.49. I have determined that [he or she] is proficient to pass the\_\_\_\_\_\_ [name of] knowledge/practical test.

DATE	_CFI
CFI NO	_ EXP